
TULSA METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION 
Meeting No. 2842 

May 19, 2021, 1 :00 PM 
175 East 2nd Street, 2nd Level, One Technology Center 

Tulsa City Council Chamber 

The meeting will be held in the Tulsa City Council Chamber and by videoconferencing 
and teleconferencing via GoToMeeting, an online meeting and web conferencing tool. 

Commissioners and members of the public may attend the meeting in the Tulsa City 
Council Chamber, but are encouraged to attend and participate in the TMAPC meeting 
via videoconferencing and teleconferencing by joining from a computer, tablet or 
smartphone using the following link: 

https://www.gotomeet.me/CityOfTulsa3/tmapc may 19th 2021 

Commissioners and members of the public can also dial in using their phone by dialing: 

United States: +1 (872) 240-3212 

Participants must then enter the following Access Code: 337-183-045 

The following Commissioners plan to attend remotely via GoToMeeting, provided that 
they may still be permitted to appear and attend at the meeting site, the Tulsa City 
Council Chambers, Second Floor of City Hall, at One Technology Center, 175 East 
Second Street, Tulsa Oklahoma: Chair Covey, Commissioner Adams, Commissioner 
Blair, Commissioner Craddock, Commissioner Kimbrel, Commissioner McArtor, 
Commissioner Reeds, Commissioner Shivel, Commissioner Van Cleave, Commissioner 
Walker, Commissioner Whitlock 

If you wish to present or share any documents, written comments, or exhibits during the 
hearing, please submit them by 9:00 am the day of the hearing. Remember to reference 
the case number and include your name and address. 

Email: esubmit@incog.org 
Mail: INCOG 

2 W 2nd Street 
Tulsa, OK 74103 



INTRODUCTION AND NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

At this meeting the TMAPC, in accordance with and pursuant to applicable TMAPC 
Policies and Procedures, will review, consider, discuss, and may take action on, 
approve, recommend for approval, amend or modify, recommend for approval with 
modifications, deny, reject, recommend for denial, or defer action on any item listed on 
Call to Order: 

REPORTS: 

Chairman's Report: 

Work session Report: 

Director's Report: 

Review and possible approval, approval with modifications, denial or deferral of the 
following: 

1. Minutes of May 5, 2021 Meeting No. 2841 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters under "Consent" are considered by the Planning Commission to be 
routine and will be enacted by one motion. Any Planning Commission member 
may, however, remove an item by request. 

Review and possible approval, approval with modifications, denial or deferral of the 
following: 

2. PUD-298-17 Bradley Rowell (CD 7) Location: Southwest corner of East 871h 

Place South and South 87th East Avenue requesting a PUD Minor 
Amendment to reduce required west side yard for an accessory building 

PUBLIC HEARING-REZONING 

Review and possible recommendation of approval, approval with modifications, denial or 
deferral of the following: 

3. Z-7604 Charles Onyechi (CD 1) Location: East of the southeast corner of 
Mohawk Boulevard and North Columbia Avenue requesting rezoning from CS 
to IL with optional development plan (Staff requests a continuance to 
June 2, 2021) 



4. Z-7606 Wallace Engineering, Mike Thedford (CD 1) Location: North of the 
northeast corner of East 36th Street North and North Lewis Avenue requesting 
rezoning from CS to IH with optional development plan (Staff requests a 
continuance to June 2, 2021) 

5. Z-7605 Lou Reynolds (CD 6) Location: Southeast corner of East 31st Street 
South and South 177th East Avenue requesting rezoning from AG to RS-5 

6. Z-7607 Wallace Engineering, Jim Beach (CD 5) Location : North of the 
northwest corner of East 41 st Street South and South 79th East Avenue 
requesting rezoning from IL to IL with optional development plan for a 
private street (Related to Kaiser North Industrial Park) 

PUBLIC HEARING-PLATS 

Review and possible approval, approval with modifications or denial of the following : 

7. Kaiser North Industrial Park (CD 5) Preliminary Plat and Modification of 
Subdivision & Development Regulations to extend allowable cul-de-sac 
length and allow overhead electric within the subdivision, Location: North of 
the northwest corner of East 41 st Street South and South 79th East Avenue 
(Related to Z-7607) 

8. Woodward Acres II (County) Preliminary Plat, Location: North of the 
northwest corner of East 171 st Street South and South Harvard Avenue 

OTHER BUSINESS 

NONE 

9. Commissioners' Comments 

ADJOURN 

CD = Council District 

NOTE: If you require special accommodation pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
please notify the Tulsa Planning Office at 918-584-7526. Exhibits, petitions, pictures, etc., 
presented to the Planning Commission may be received and deposited in case files to be 
maintained Tulsa Planning Office at INCOG. All electronic devices must be silenced during the 
Planning Commission meeting. 

Visit our website at tulsaplanning.org email address: esubmit@incog.org 



TMAPC Mission Statement: The Mission of the Tulsa Metropolitan Area Planning Commission 
(TMAPC) is to provide unbiased advice to the City Council and the County Commissioners on 
development and zoning matters, to provide a public forum that fosters public participation and 
transparency in land development and planning, to adopt and maintain a comprehensive plan 
for the metropolitan area, and to provide other planning, zoning and land division services that 
promote the harmonious development of the Tulsa Metropolitan Area and enhance and 
preserve the quality of life for the region's current and future residents. 



Case Report Prepared by: 
Jay Hoyt 

Location Map: 
(shown with City Council Districts) 

Zoning: 
Existing Zoning: RS-3/PUD-298 
Proposed Zoning: No Change 

Comprehensive Plan: 
Land Use Map: Existing Neighborhood 
Growth and Stability Map: Stability 

Staff Data: 
TRS: 8313 

Case Number: PUD-298-17 
Minor Amendment 

Hearing Date: May 19, 2021 

Owner and Applicant Information: 
Applicant: Bradley Rowell 

Applicant Proposal: 

Concept summary: PUD minor amendment 
to reduce the required west side yard for an 
accessory building. 

Gross Land Area : 0.18 Acres 

Location: SW/c E 871h Pl S & S 871h E Ave 

Lot 13, Block 1 Shadow Ridge 

Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval. 

City Council District: 7 
Councilor Name: Lori Deeter Wright 

County Commission District: 3 
Commissioner Name: Ron Peters 

d.l 



May 19, 2021 

SECTION I: PUD-298-17 Minor Amendment 

Amendment Request Revise the PUD Development Standards to reduce the 
required west side yard for an accessory building. 

The current development standard for side yards is 5 feet for any building. The 
applicant is requesting that this requirement be reduced to O feet in order to 
accommodate an existing accessory building on the west side of the lot. The 
accessory building would need to be outside of any easements, however the plat 
for Shadow Ridge shows that there are no easements in the location of the 
accessory building. The area to the west of the lot is an unplatted and undeveloped 
forested area. 

Staff Comment: This request is considered a Minor Amendment as outlined by 
Section 30.010.l.2.c(9) of the City of Tulsa Zoning Code. 

"Changes in structure heights, building setbacks, yards, open 
spaces, building coverage and lot widths or frontages, provided the 
approved PUD development plan, the approved standards and the 
character of the development are not substantially altered." 

Staff has reviewed the request and determined: 

1) PUD-298-17 does not represent a significant departure from the approved 
development standards in the PUD and is considered a minor amendment 
to PUD-298. 

2) The requested amendment would only apply to accessory buildings. 

3) All remaining development standards defined in PUD-298 and subsequent 
amendments shall remain in effect. 

Exhibits included with staff report: 
INCOG zoning case map 
INCOG aerial photo 
INCOG aerial photo (enlarged) 

With considerations listed above, staff recommends approval of the minor 
amendment to reduce the side yard on the west side of the subject lot to O feet to 
accommodate and existing accessory building. 



0 

PUD-704 

Feet 
250 

PUD-448 

co 

500 

AG 

= PUD-SSSA 
•• 
'l-.r.-:.-:.-, OL =.-=.. 

II 
II 

PUD-298-17 
18-13 13 



0 
Feet 
250 500 D Subject 

Tract 
PUD-298-17 

18-13 13 

Note: Graphic overlays may not precisely $N 
align with phys/cal features on the ground. 

Aerial Photo Date: February d, q 



0 
Feet 
50 100 D Subject 

Tract 
PUD-298-17 

18-13 13 

Note: Graphic overlays may not precisely N 
align with physical features on the ground. _ffi__ 

Aerial Photo Date: February 2018 W 
d.5 





Sawyer, Kim 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Kim, 

Wilkerson, Dwayne 
Wednesday, May 12, 2021 11:09 AM 
Sawyer, Kim 
cinosweatz@gmail.com; Miller, Susan; Davis, Kendal 
Z-7604 Staff Continuance to June 2nd 2021 . 

Please show on the agenda that we are requesting a continuance from the May 19th meeting to the June 2nd meeting. The 
additional time will allow the applicant to provide more information on the development plan. 

Respectfully, 

TULSA 
PLANNING OFFICE 

Dwayne Wilkerson, ASLA, PLA 
Principal Planner I Current Planning 
Tulsa Planning Office 
2 W. 2nd St. , 8th Floor Tulsa, OK 74103 
9 18.579.9475 
dwilkerson@inco .or 

1 3\ 



-



Sawyer, Kim 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Kim, 

Wilkerson, Dwayne 
Wednesday, May 12, 2021 9:59 AM 
Sawyer, Kim 
Mike Thedford (mthedford@wallacesc.com); Miller, Susan 
Staff continuance request for z-7606 with a development plan 

The applicant has been working through the neighborhood engagement process as suggested in the zoning code and staff is 
continuing to work with the applicant on the details of the development plan associated with this zoning application. Please 
show on the agenda that this item will been continued to the June 2"d Planning Commission meeting. 

Respectfully, 

PLANNING OFFICE 

Dwayne Wilkerson, ASLA, PLA 
Principal Planner I Current Planning 
Tulsa Planning Office 
2 W. 2nd St. , 8th Floor Tulsa , OK 74103 
918.579.9475 
idwilkerson@incoq.org 

1 </. / 





Tulsa Metropolitan Area 
Planning Commission 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Dwayne Wilkerson 

Location Map: 
(shown with City Council Districts) 

Zoning: 

Existing Zoning: AG 

Proposed Zoning: RS-5 

Comprehensive Plan: 

Land Use Map: New Neighborhood 

Stability and Growth Map: Area of Growth 

Staff Data: 

TRS: 9424 
CZM: 50 

Case Number: Z-7605 

Hearing Date: May 19, 2021 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Lou Reynolds 

Property Owner. White Earth LLC 

Applicant Proposal: 

Present Use: Vacant 

Proposed Use: Residential 

Concept summary: Rezoning to support a wide 
range of residential lot sizes. RS-5 zoning allows 
the smallest lot in our residential districts with a 
minimum lot size of 3300 square feet and a 
minimum lot width of 30 feet. 

Tract Size: 136. 78 ± acres 

Location: Southeast corner of East 31st Street 
South at Lynn Lane (South 177th East Avenue) 

Staff Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval. 

City Council District: 6 

Councilor Name: Connie Dodson 

County Commission District: 1 

Commissioner Name: Stan Sallee 

5/ REVISED 5/ 11/2021 



SECTION I: Z-7605 

DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT: 

The applicant is requesting RS-5 zoning to allow a variety of lot sizes for single family homes. RS-5 
zoning allows single family homes, cottage home development, townhomes, and patio homes. 

EXHIBITS: 
INCOG Case map 
INCOG Aerial (small scale) 
INCOG Aerial (large scale) 
Tulsa Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map 
Tulsa Comprehensive Plan Areas of Stability and Growth Map 
Applicant Exhibits: None included 

DETAILED STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Z-7605 requesting RS-5 zoning allows single family residential uses that are compatible with the 
surrounding properties and, 

Lot and building regulations in a RS-5 district allow a density similar to the abutting MPD-1 zoned 
properties immediately west of this property and RS-5 zoning is consistent with the anticipated future 
development pattern of the surrounding property and, 

RS-5 zoning is consistent with the New Neighborhood land use designation of the Comprehensive 
Plan therefore, 

Staff recommends Approval of Z-7605 to rezone property from AG to RS-5. 

SECTION II: Supporting Documentation 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

Staff Summary: The residential density, variety of building types and uses allowed are 
consistent with the land use designation in the comprehensive plan. 

Land Use Vision: 

Land Use Plan map designation: Neighborhood Center and New Neighborhood 

Neighborhood Centers are small-scale, one to three story mixed-use areas intended to serve 
nearby neighborhoods with retail, dining, and services. They can include apartments, 
condominiums, and townhouses, with small lot single family homes at the edges. These are 
pedestrian-oriented places served by transit, and visitors who drive can park once and walk to 
number of destinations. 

The New Neighborhood residential building block is comprised of a plan category by the same 
name. It is intended for new communities developed on vacant land. These neighborhoods are 
comprised primarily of single-family homes on a range of lot sizes but can include townhouses 
and low-rise apartments or condominiums. These areas should be designed to meet high 

52 
REVISED 5/11/2021 



standards of internal and external connectivity and shall be paired with an existing or New 
Neighborhood or Town Center. 

Areas of Stability and Growth designation: Area of Growth 

The purpose of Areas of Growth is to direct the allocation of resources and channel growth to 
where it will be beneficial and can best improve access to jobs, housing, and services with 
fewer and shorter auto trips. Areas of Growth are parts of the city where general agreement 
exists that development or redevelopment is beneficial. As steps are taken to plan for, and, in 
some cases, develop or redevelop these areas, ensuring that existing residents will not be 
displaced is a high priority. A major goal is to increase economic activity in the area to benefit 
existing residents and businesses, and where necessary, provide the stimulus to redevelop. 

Areas of Growth are found throughout Tulsa. These areas have many different characteristics 
but some of the more common traits are proximity to or abutting an arterial street, major 
employment and industrial areas, or areas of the city with an abundance of vacant land. Also, 
several of the Areas of Growth are in or near downtown. Areas of Growth provide Tulsa with the 
opportunity to focus growth in a way that benefits the City as a whole. Development in these 
areas will provide housing choice and excellent access to efficient forms of transportation 
including walking, biking, transit, and the automobile." 

Transportation Vision: 

Major Street and Highway Plan: East 31st Street South and South Lynn Lane are both 
illustrated as secondary arterial streets. No additional considerations are shown on the plan. 

Trail System Master Plan Considerations: None 

Small Area Plan: None 

Special District Considerations: None 

Historic Preservation Overlay: None 

DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING CONDITIONS: 

Staff Summary: The site is gently sloping with stormwater drainage generally flowing from 
west to east into the Spunky Creek Floodplain and Floodway east of the site. The site is 
bisected by a regulatory floodplain and is lightly wooded. 

Environmental Considerations: None except the regulatory floodplain in the middle of the site. 

Streets: 

Exist. Access MSHP Design MSHP R/W Exist. # Lanes 

East 31st Street South Secondary Arterial 100 feet 2 

South Lynn Lane (S. 177th E. Ave) Secondary Arterial 100 feet 2 

Utilities: 

53 
REVIS ED 5/11/2021 



The subject tract has municipal water and sewer available however significant offsite utility 
infrastructure for water and sanitary sewer improvement is expected. 

Surrounding Properties: 

Location Existing Zoning Existing Land Use 
Designation 

North AG and RM-0 Park and Open 
Space 

East AG New Neighborhood 
South AG New Neighborhood 
West MPD-1 New Neighborhood 

SECTION Ill: Relevant Zoning History 

History: Z-7605 

Area of Stability Existing Use 
or Growth 

Stability City of Tulsa Water 
Reservoir 

Growth Undeveloped 
Growth Undeveloped 
Growth Undeveloped 

ZONING ORDINANCE: Ordinance number 11826 dated June 26, 1970 established zoning for the 
subject property. 

Subject Property: 

No Relevant History. 

Surrounding Property: 

Z-7587 February 2021: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a 160.:t acre tract of 
land from AG to RS-5 for Single-family Residential, on property located on the southwest corner 
of East 31st Street South and South 193rd East Avenue. 

MPD-1 April 2019: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a 117.5± acre tract of 
land from AG to MPD-1 for a mixed-use master planned community with a variety of housing 
types, recreational, civic, and commercial uses, integrated open space and park development, 
on property located on the southwest corner of East 31st Street and South 177th East Avenue. 

Z-7009 February 2006: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a 21.81± acre tract 
of land from AG to CS/RM-0 for Commercial, Office, and Multifamily residential uses, on 
property located southeast corner of East 3pt Street South and South 177th East Avenue. 

BOA-17616 January 1997: The Board of Adjustment approved a Special Exception to permit 
a model airplane facility in an AG and CS zoned district, a Variance of required parking from 
4274 to 45, and a Variance of required all weather surface to permit parking on gravel and 
grass, per plan submitted, on property located on the northeast corner of 31st and Lynn Lane. 

BOA-06811 November 1970: The Board of Adjustment approved an Exception to permit 
occupying a mobile home in an AG District, on property located at the northeast corner of 31st 
Street and Lynn Lane. 

5/19/2021 1 :00 PM 

REVISED 5/11/2021 



MPD-1 

L_ __ w 
> c;:( 
LiJ 

cs 

cs 

RM-0 
I 

' '------

AG 

SUBJECT TRACT 

-----------------------
Cl-------------~A: G:_~ ·--------­
a:: 
UJ 
z 
ct 41L ________ I 
z 

'~--------;;ii ~-------,--i---,-t-----n 
cb 

...._.~ ------
PUD-733 

0 
Feet 
350 700 Z-7605 

19-14 24 



0 
Feet 
350 700 

Subject 
Tract 

Z-7605 
19-14 24 

N 
Note: Graphic overlays may not precisely $ 
align with physical features on the ground~ / _ 

Aerial Photo Date: February 2018 ._). \..f) 



0 
Feet 
350 700 

- - E-31st S--W Sr-

-- -------------------
m 
tt: 

I W,__ __ 
z 
<( 
..!J 

L z 
z 
* 

Land Use Plan Categories 

- Downtown 

- Downtown Neighborhood 

- Main Street 

Mixed-Use Corridor 

- Regional Center 

- Town Center 

Z-7605 
19-14 24 

- Neighborhood Center 

Employment 

New Neighborhood 

Existing Neighborhood 

- Park and Open Space 

Arkansas River Corridor 

5. 7-$-



I 
_I_ 

Feet 
0 350 700 

-+=~-:---,--.. ---

I 
I 
I 
I 
I ______ .. 

1 ____________ J 

J 

1 

Z-7605 
19-14 24 

Growth and Stability 

- Area of Growth 

Area of Stability 



TM 
Tulsa Metropolitan Area 
Planning Commission 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Dwayne Wilkerson 

Location Map: 
(shown with City Council Districts) 

Zoning: 

Existing Zoning: IL 

Proposed Zoning: IL with an optional 
development plan for a private street. 

Comprehensive Plan: 

Land Use Map: Employment 

Stability and Growth Map: Area of Growth 

Staff Data: 

TRS: 9323 
CZM: 48 

Case Number: Z-7607 
(related to Kaiser North Industrial Park) 

Hearing Date: May 19, 2021 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Jim Beach 

Property Owner. Bolick Enterprises, LLC 

Applicant Proposal: 

Present Use: Vacant 

Proposed Use: Private Street Industrial Park 

Concept summary: Develop the property into small 
industrial use lots with access from a private street. 

Tract Size: 17.35 .± acres 

Location: North of the Northwest corner of East 41 st 

Street South & South 79th East Avenue 

Staff Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval with the provisions 
of the optional development plan. 

City Council District: 5 

Councilor Name: Mykey Arthrell 

County Commission District: 3 

Commissioner Name: Ron Peters 

REVISED 5/ 12/2021 



SECTION I: Z-7607 

APPLICANTS DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT: 

Kaiser North Industrial Park is being developed on an undeveloped tract, zoned IL. It is proposed to 
have eleven lots in two blocks with one reserve area for stormwater detention and one for the private 
street. The subdivision contains approximately 17.3 acres. The reserve contains approximately 0.86 
acres. The lots vary in size and average approximately 1.2 acres each. 

All lots will be accessed from a private cul-de-sac connecting to South 79th East Avenue at the eastern 
edge of the site. The street will be pavement will be 26 feet wide with curb and gutter. The private 
street aligns with East 4Q1h Street from South 79th East Avenue, east to Memorial Drive. 

There is a continuous area of City of Tulsa Regulatory Floodway in an Overland Drainage Easement 
extending along the entire north and west boundaries of the property. Abutting the site to the south is 
an active MK&O Railroad. There are no opportunities to continue the street beyond boundaries of this 
property. 

The current zoning is IL and will not be changed . The uses proposed are allowed by right in the IL 
District. The project will meet the bulk and area standards of the IL District as well as required 
landscaping, lighting, and other requirements of the Tulsa Zoning Code. 

EXHIBITS: 
INCOG Case map 
INCOG Aerial (small scale) 
INCOG Aerial (large scale) 
Tulsa Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map 
Tulsa Comprehensive Plan Areas of Stability and Growth Map 
Applicant Exhibits: Preliminary Plat 

DETAILED STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Z-7607 is requesting IL with the optional development plan as outlined in Section II is consistent with 
the Regional Center land use designation of the Tulsa comprehensive plan and, 

The uses allowed in an IL district are consistent with the surrounding property owners. 

All supplemental regulations, lot and building regulations and building types in this zoning district are 
consistent with the expected development pattern in the area therefore, 

Staff recommends Approval of Z-7607 to rezone property from IL to IL with an optional 
development plan to allow private streets and allow lots without frontage on a public street. 

SECTION II: OPTIONAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN STANDARDS: 

GENERAL PROVISIONS: 

1. All district use regulations, supplemental regulations, building types, lot and building 
regulations, along with other relevant regulations shall conform with the provision of the 
Tulsa Zoning Code for development in an IL zoning district except that lots are not required 
to have public street frontage. 

REVISED 5/12/2021 



PRIVATE STREETS AND MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR COMMON AREAS AND 
IMPROVEMENTS: 

1. All lots within the subdivision shall include direct vehicular access to a private street. All 
private streets shall be included in a reserve area or mutual access easement as defined on 
the face of the final plat. The reserve area or easement shall include provisions that provide 
common use and benefit of the owners of the lots, their guest and invitees for providing 
vehicular and pedestrian access to and from the various residential lots and to and from 
public streets. 

2. All operations and maintenance responsibilities for improvements in reserve areas shall be 
assigned to a Property Owners Association. Such obligation must be provided for in the 
plat. Each property owner, by acceptance of a deed to a property within the development, 
will be deemed to have agreed to be a member of the property owner's association and be 
subject to assessments for maintenance of the common areas and public or private 
improvements. 

3. Provisions shall be made to allow access to the City of Tulsa, the United States Postal 
Service, private parcel delivery services, public utility providing service to the subdivision 
and to any refuse collection service which provides service within the subdivision the right to 
enter and traverse the private street and to operate thereon all service, emergency and 
allow government vehicles including, but not limited to, police and fire vehicles and 
equipment. 

5. Private streets and sidewalks abutting private streets shall be constructed to meet or exceed 
the City of Tulsa Engineering standards for minor residential streets and must satisfy the 
provisions of the Tulsa Metropolitan Area Subdivision and Development Regulations. 

6. Private streets intersecting with public streets must have a vehicular turn around area before 
any entrance gate that allows a complete turnaround completely outside the street right of 
way of the intersecting public streets. Gate designs, security systems and access controls 
must be reviewed and approved by the technical advisory committee before installation. 

MINIMUM BUILDING SETBACKS FROM PRIVATE STREETS: 
1. No building shall be located closer than 20 feet from the lot line abutting the reserve area for 

the private street. 

LANDSCAPING: 
1) All landscaping shall conform with or exceed the landscape standards of the Tulsa Zoning Code at 

the time a building permit for new building construction is submitted. Additionally, the following 
standards shall apply to street yard landscaping which shall be provided along the mutual access 
drive as follows: 

i) A landscape strip with a minimum width of 12 feet from the edge of pavement shall be 
established and maintained as a landscaped area. 

ii) Within that landscape strip trees classified as large trees shall be installed and maintained 
with a maximum spacing of one tree for each 50 linear feet along both sides of the private 
street. 

PLATTING REQUIRMENT: 

A final plat meeting or exceeding the minimum standards of the City of Tulsa shall be filed at the Tulsa 
County Courthouse prior to receipt of any commercial building permit. (p . 3 

REVISED 5/12/2021 



SECTION 111:SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

Staff Summary: This request is consistent with the Employment land use designation in the 
comprehensive plan. Generally, the comprehensive plan is not supportive of private street 
development without street connectivity options on the perimeter however in this instance the 
properly abutting the site has been developed and the properly is isolated. Staff supports 
private street development in this location. 

Land Use Vision: 

Land Use Plan map designation: Employment 

Employment areas contain office, warehousing, light manufacturing, and high tech uses such as clean 
manufacturing or information technology. Sometimes big-box retail or warehouse retail clubs are 
found in these areas. These areas are distinguished from mixed-use centers in that they have few 
residences and typically have more extensive commercial activity. 

Employment areas require access to major arterials or interstates. Those areas, with manufacturing 
and warehousing uses must be able to accommodate extensive truck traffic, and rail in some 
instances. Due to the special transportation requirements of these districts, attention to design, 
screening and open space buffering is necessary when employment districts are near other districts 
that include moderate residential use. 

Areas of Stability and Growth designation: Area of Growth 

The purpose of Areas of Growth is to direct the allocation of resources and channel growth to where it 
will be beneficial and can best improve access to jobs, housing, and services with fewer and shorter 
auto trips. Areas of Growth are parts of the city where general agreement exists that development or 
redevelopment is beneficial. As steps are taken to plan for, and, in some cases, develop or redevelop 
these areas, ensuring that existing residents will not be displaced is a high priority. A major goal is to 
increase economic activity in the area to benefit existing residents and businesses, and where 
necessary, provide the stimulus to redevelop. 

Areas of Growth are found throughout Tulsa. These areas have many different characteristics but 
some of the more common traits are close proximity to or abutting an arterial street, major employment 
and industrial areas, or areas of the city with an abundance of vacant land. Also, several of the Areas 
of Growth are in or near downtown. Areas of Growth provide Tulsa with the opportunity to focus 
growth in a way that benefits the City as a whole . Development in these areas will provide housing 
choice and excellent access to efficient forms of transportation including walking, biking, transit, and 
the automobile." 

Transportation Vision: 

Major Street and Highway Plan: This property will only have access to S. 75th East Avenue and is 
land locked from access to the south because of a railroad line and all surrounding properties have 
been previously developed without stub streets. 
Trail System Master Plan Considerations: None 

REVISED 5/12/2021 



Small Area Plan: None 

Special District Considerations: None 

Historic Preservation Overlay: None 

DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING CONDITIONS: 

Staff Summary: This site is vacant and surrounded by previously developed property and abuts 
a rail line on the south. 

Environmental Considerations: This site was previously developed as an industrial site and has been 
through a remediation process. The north and east sides of the site is surrounded by significant open 
drainage and the west and south is limited by a railroad spur. These physical constraints support the 
idea of a private street network. This site does not have any other vehicular access opportunities 
except South 79th East Avenue. 

Streets: 

Exist. Access MSHP Design 

South 79th East Avenue None 

Utilities: 

The subject tract has municipal water and sewer available. 

Surrounding Properties: 

Location Existing Zoning Existing Land Use 
Designation 

North IL Employment 
East IL Employment 

South IL and IM Employment 
West IL Employment 

SECTION IV: RELEVANT ZONING HISTORY 

MSHP R/W Exist. # Lanes 

50 feet 2 

Area of Stability Existing Use 
or Growth 

Growth Ind ustria 1/wa rehousing 
Growth Industrial/warehousing 
Growth Industrial/warehousing 
Growth Industrial/warehousing 

ZONING ORDINANCE: Ordinance number 11824 dated June 26, 1970 established zoning for the 
subject property. 

Subject Property: 

BOA-16742 August 1994: The Board of Adjustment approved a Special Exception to permit a 
Halloween outreach from the second week of October through November 15 annually and a 
Special Exception to permit a tent, per plan submitted, subject to the tent being at the same 
location and being the same size as the previously approved plan, finding the extended days of 
operation for the temporary use will not be detrimental to the area, on property located at 7727 
East 41 51 Street South. This request includes the eastern most portion of the subject property 
and the neighboring property to the south of this piece. 

REVISED 5/12/2021 



BOA-16477 October 1993: The Board of Adjustment approved a Minor Special Exception to 
permit for an amended site plan approval-Use Unit 5, per amended site plan, subject to the tent 
being temporarily located on the lot from October 12, 1993 to November 14, 1993, finding the 
temporary use will not be detrimental to the area, on property located at 7727 East 41st Street 
South. This request includes the eastern most portion of the subject property and the 
neighboring property to the south of this piece. 

BOA-16464 October 1993: The Board of Adjustment denied a Special Exception to permit 
Use Unit 19 (Halloween Spook House) as an accessory use to church use due to the fact the 
applicant failed to appear before the Board, on property located at 7727 East 41st Street South. 
This request includes the eastern most portion of the subject property and the neighboring 
property to the south of this piece. 

BOA-16146 September 1992: The Board of Adjustment approved a Special Exception to 
permit church use in an IL zoned district, subject to the plan submitted and subject to the hours 
of operation (music concerts to conclude at midnight) and events as submitted by the applicant 
in this meeting, on property located at 7727 East 41st Street South. This request includes the 
eastern most portion of the subject property and the neighboring property to the south of this 
piece. 

BOA-14832 May 1988: The Board of Adjustment approved a Special Exception to allow for a 
Use Unit 14 (Shopping Goods and Services) in an IL zoned district, finding that there are 
numerous retail uses in the area, on property located at 7727 East 41 st Street. This request 
includes the eastern most portion of the subject property and the neighboring property to the 
south of this piece. 

BOA-14576 August 1987: The Board of Adjustment denied a Special Exception to allow a 
ballroom and related uses in an IL zoned district, finding that the granting of the request would 
be detrimental to the area, on property located at 7727 East 41 st Street. This request includes 
the eastern most portion of the subject property and the neighboring property to the south of 
this piece. 

BOA-03958 November 1962: The Board of Adjustment approved a request for a modification 
of setback requirements in a U-4-A District, on property located on part of the SE, SE, of 
Section 23-19-13. This request includes the eastern most portion of the subject property and 
the neighboring property to the south of this piece. 

Surrounding Property: 

BOA-22729 December 2019: The Board of Adjustment approved a Special Exception to 
permit a Large Commercial Assembly and Entertainment use (more than 250-person capacity) 
in an IL District to permit expansion of an existing gymnastics facility, subject to conceptual plan 
4.6 of the agenda packet and no competitions occurring on the site, on property located at 7020 
East 38th Street South . 

BOA-16530 December 1993: The Board of Adjustment approved a Special Exception to 
permit a children's museum in an IL zoned district, on property located at 7704 East 38th Street. 

BOA-16076 August 1992: The Board of Adjustment approved a Special Exception to permit 
Use Unit 14, or in alternative, a Special Exception to permit a sexually oriented business in an 
Industrial District, subject to days and hours of operation being Monday through Thursday, 

~- (.p 
REVISED 5/12/2021 



10:00am to 10:00pm, Friday through Saturday 10:00am to midnight, and Sunday 1:00 pm to 
1 O:OOpm, subject to the business prohibiting, and strictly enforcing, admittance of all individuals 
under 18 years of age, all movies displayed, rented, or sold must be of a character acceptable 
for general distribution over public air waves, that no form of entertainment of any nature be 
permitted on the site, and all products for sale, display, or rental within the operation will not 
involve children or depict acts of violence against women, on property located at 7925 East 41 st 

Street. 

BOA-11051 June 1980: The Board of Adjustment approved an Exception to operate the 
Oklahoma School of Gymnastics, Tulsa World of Gymnastics, and Tulsa Twisters Trampoline & 
Tumbling, on property located at 7246 East 381h Street. 

BOA-08343 September 1974: The Board of Adjustment approved an Exception to use 
property for Use Units 12, 13, and 14 and a Variance to use property for a ballroom (Use Unit 
19) in an IL District, on property located at 7901 East 41 51 Street. 

5/19/2021 1:00 PM 

<-e . 7 
REVISED 5/ 12/ 2021 



0 

RS-2 

~ 
~ LiJ· 
" I 
~ 
'&j------,---- -----1 

cs 

--

LIJ 
1::::,;: 'c:t----.....,__ __ I 1---.--v 
LIJ' 

Feet 

~· ........ 
(./)I 

250 500 
19-13 23 

Z-7607 
with Optional 

Development Plan 

IL 

EAO_sr_s 

cs 



0 
Feet 
250 500 

19-13 23 

Z-7607 
with Optional 

Development Plan 

N 
Note: Graphic overlays may not precisely $ 
align with physical features on the ground. 

Aerial Photo Date: February 2018 & <:t 



I 
11---11 

L_ 
I _j_ ___ _ 

l 

~ 1-------.-,q:, 
LU 

- ~ 
,,__ ___ ___.___,__ __ ____, Cl) 

Growth and Stability 

0 

Area of Growth 

Area of Stability 

Feet 
250 500 

19-13 23 

-l-
Z-7607 

with Optional 
Development Plan 

r 
j 

I 

\._____.___I 

I 
r J-

{o. /0-$-



--~--~~----~-.-----..,,~ SUBJECTTRACT 
LAND USE PLAN 

EMPLOYMENT 

Land Use Plan Categories 

- Downtown - Neighborhood Center 

- Downtown Neighborhood Employment 

- Main Street New Neighborhood 

Mixed-Use Corridor Existing Neighborhood 

- Regional Center - Park and Open Space 

- Town Center Arkansas River Corridor 

Z-7607 
0 

Feet 
250 500 

19-13 23 with Optional 
Development Plan 

~I 
E 40SIS 

&.fl$ 



~ • 
........... 

r 

BASIS Of BEARINGS 

~~~:=::..::::::,:=~~=:« 
WP'l'l ~KPJtlll'lJllll~a:;to.~ ,~1IIOl"1 IIMCli•JCAIJ 
~--"Q l ~O,S~ 

MQNJ,IMENTATION 
,1LLCORNEF1ST08E&ETWTHA:W IR0H tl!f't~THY6.LOWCAPLM.ESS 
OTHERWSENOTEO 

f(OOO 20_11/E NO 
hoa~,~-aDl~li~>,w,p~...:, 
~~~,~&ATl,UW.11.a..P 
«un1 OoQ.-#,oMA .... -.0.C1u:;r.ntL IW"IIC,"jll.Qo IOt~X!,~­
~~l~"'Uifl~tQll·1 .... ~~0~AS 
,.co•r110.-t0ioeO'll1C1~~'UC>lm-aJieoSC•1,..."co~o 
'OliQrM'T'.:a:c,r-ft,11 .. 'P'C,1,11~~ 

N9.TES 
1 J:MJ~1't\lRTJr ... ~-..... .s..·~torn«lll'llcni:rj 

t,v,M!!.~1,s,~.,..,n.t.~1T,nl(IA,ltgr:, 
lllt:l'1&.1~~...._ .... ~~I.NG~ 

llril.l~~ ..... ., ..... ~ ....... 111~ ..... 
3 >.OORi:'s.5£SSHO'NI.Ct<ITHIS1'1.ATAAEAO."\JRATEATTHET1METHEPLAT 

WM.FILED ACORESSE51\RESUc:i,JECTT0CHAN~E AN0SHOULDNEVERBE 
R.EUED ON IN 1'1.ACE OF THE lEG"'l. CESCRl?TION 

.-.i..L W"'TER A~ S,O.t,illA,RY SElM:.11 LINES W~ E!E 51..f'P\.!EO &Y TI-IECffY OF 
TULSA 

5 :':;i~-..,.~,.,~C..0~1rc,-.a,uu:"1lllD'•,. 

llNEANOCllRVE TABLE 
~ WQl"1 .. ~ o<llf.lK-v'mC j O<.alO'-""OT .. 

r, "'-""l'r.'....... :J.... e,.;.'"""" 
~ UiN tit ::::;)O,O-• 

'CC ... 
~ 

ff 
ff! 1~ 
:!c"' 
~ 

~ 
~ 

.,.,.,.., -.... 

·,_ 

Ill t717 

C2i-QJ• 

.. 

( 
i 

-',.. 

Preliminary Plat 

Kaiser North Industrial Plant 
l 

\ SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY. STATE OF OKLAHOMA, 
BEING A PART OF THE S/2 OF THE SE/4 OF SECTION 23, 

TOWNSHIP 19 NORTH, RANCE f3 EAST, OF THE IND/AN EASE AND MERJDJAN. _ .. 
OWNER: 

Bolick Enterprises, LLC 
7655 East 41st Street South 

Tulsa, Oklahoma, 74145 
~ ... Bobo~ 

ENGINEER; 

Stru~~~=r~:nns~~=~;~~1Nc 
123MLKJr Blvd 

Tulsa, Oklahoma, 7"4103 
Phone: (918) 584-5858 

... mCOI.£ WATTS, P.E NO 21!.11 
Ol< GANO 1'«! EXP1RES&l0r.?Ol1 

-ru.o~.s<t<,n, 

SURVEYOR 

Sisemore Weisz & Associates, Inc 
6111 E 32nd Place 

Tulsa, Oklahoma 7-11J5 
Phone: (91B) 665-3600 

Si'1AVt.f'I A COi.LiN S LS NO 11~6 
Ol(CANQ 101 EXPIFIES6ll0/2W1 

~ , cc:.,.n<0&...,.....i:,cc,,,., 

ft 
NORTH 

Scole:1"·100' 

__. ..... ~ ,,r . ' ~ /\ :" 11 

r__.__ ......... --·- -a.-- ..... . .,,. - - , .... --t-c-- J - -, · ... ~ --- ....... .... I, , ll'flllil -- .. • ~----=-- ---=~'I.'-·-==-.,.---'- --=· .. /...... ., ,~ ; . , I 
I .• --~ ~ ' ·, ....... ,.._,.,,-- --------,~- ',__ \ \ ' I 

:r • • ~ 'g -··-- ' ; I• \ 13 l2l!I ~ S ! 8 ! '1 . . /. o - - • - -1 ., ··- .;-,- .., ~,. 

; .$ ."' -·-,, ,I J 2 l IIIE:R'.CARl••r - - ' \ • _ _." . ' ~•~- • "• - ~ ~=,. \ 1u...~ ' • ......._'":.-;------ -- ·--- ---r.w----·--··---;, '! _.... _.,,, ,, :-.u.-- ---, • ..--- ---,., .... -- ·--, ...... -- \_ _ __ _.. ______ L J ~ f- . 1<JL,OC. _______ ;;_~ ; ! 
~ l=.&C:.T AnTU C:.TOCC:T l l ) ' 

ii 

-..L__ --' ... •--- " r ;, - -- .:¥.~ 

l 3·--'1·~1 
·---·=o•uc-· ----·---· ---.... '\1'!"'".,. ____ _ .;* __ 

i i " ~~-~ ~ 
! ;,I 
11 

• [ls;J e:;;l 10 

J\:., 
~'"' 

~ ... ,c . 

..-

1 .,.._.."Jlof~M.1 '",$VI ... .,. 
,,./flllt~llll'll~ 

--- - - I' ~ - , ; -- . i? 

\.\ I 

~iii 
1~ 

_,. 

__ , _ _ JI ~ ---· 
~ - ' . 

-- EAST 41ST STREET SOUTH ~ '''""••"" ··-- ' . 
Benc.hmar'1c -+ 
rO*'oi~ 
t"JYo\TD&+MJ4 

~ ""~ 

~rcow-
~UttM • :;f ·, ·-" 

I 

J 
~r••.xi 

_..., 
·~0,~"4 

rw...~...._.~'-"-
~rowfO-___ _ 

·--
Oh'UoOllliH'II 

Cou<1c1LC'!Lh•Clf\lolTwlH,Oldal,oma 

llppro ,,..I 0.Le -----
;.. .. 't'Oo 

&nu,~~ 

111'1' ""~ 
Tha,;,p,.,..a,Loit11,aF., iJPbt ... Pp,ro""'•)'ll,>I 
llom1N <1a1c O'!Cq,c.,,,,a,nc1M.irnt1100IL>Q: 
DLlfteCcunryClgrOb.,,o,c,\rl.idaie 

...,. .. n 

I hc:rrby~r ~l\'ll,,, L oll1e1le.t..t,: WO'Oc• '"""""" ln 
1hrs ~If! llo1•• b,e,en ~,cl 11"ffec:icdby\~o,"''""' 
,~. rC.IJ. •cum'l ••ru.Jr•d l'!.o, ~aen P•<»lald In 
•t..• 1o/S per!ruu 
,ec1l p ,no toDl;,ppl,1d10 
10_ c,oes R!lt u- lir,utz: ,nNOT ,,,~ 
CCll"$\ru,ed••p•yn,e,ilc,llO_ t.o-.c•1<1lullbu1a 
C,W<1 1na-,1~1tl'••pi•t"'.y"'"lil•d...,,_d 
lo_,..,.,m•v•""'cd,~11mci.,ntC.thc: 
~h,VdCpa>'l 

OEN~ISY~LE.11 
J.,k.,(ow,..,,, .. ,.,..., 

.. -· 
STAflGt011L.AHGMA j 

'" tOwnYOflll LSA J 

1.P11 ~ .f,J.., (c,untyC1cA,m anat«U1e(c.,,,ry 
•~ <»• n•med, de her•by co n fy 1~11 th<' lor~1<>1 ns 
1< • Vu t•lldc,wrca«>o:>~al ;a h~ ,,,.lr1,1..,cnt­
""'~• rn mwcllrc.,, 

.. _ --,,.-,,_-,.,,,c-, -­..... , .... 
.. ---,-,------

Kaiser North Industrial Plant 
:>.~Mll:\J•\,4,.,, )(,1 



TM 
Tulsa Metropolitan Area 
Planning Commission 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Nathan Foster 

Location Map: 
(shown with City Council Districts) 

Zoning: 
Current: IL (Industrial - Light) 
Pending: IL with an optional development plan 
to permit private street (Z-7607) 

Case : Kaiser North Industrial Park 
(Related to Z-7607) 

Hearing Date: May 19, 2021 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Jim Beach, Wallace 
Engineering 

Owner. Bolick Enter rises, LLC 

Applicant Proposal: 

Preliminary Subdivision Plat and 
Modification of Subdivision & 
Development Regulations 

11 lots, 2 blocks, 17.3 ± acres 

Location: West of the northwest corner of 
East 41 st Street South and South 79th East 
Avenue 

Staff Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval of the 
preliminary plat and modifications 

City Council District: 5 

Councilor Name: Mykey Arthrell-Knezek 

County Commission District: 3 

Commissioner Name: Ron Peters 

EXHIBITS: Site Map, Aerial, Land Use, Growth & Stability, Preliminary Plat Submittal, 
Modification Requests 

r. l 



PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT 

Kaiser North Industrial Park - (CD 5) 
(Related to Z-7607) 
West of the northwest corner of East 41 st Street South and South 79th East 
Avenue 

This plat consists of 11 lots, 2 blocks on 17.3 ± acres for use as an industrial 
park. 

The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) met on May 6, 2021 and provided the 
following conditions: 

1. Zoning: The property is currently zoned IL. Proposed lots conform to the 
requirements of the IL district. An optional development plan has been 
proposed (Z-7607) to allow for a private street within the industrial park. 
Optional Development Plan standards must be approved and effective prior 
to approval of the final plat. Standards for private street must be included in 
the deed of dedication. 

2. Transportation & Traffic: Sidewalks are required to be installed per Title 
35 in conjunction with any newly platted subdivision. Private street must 
meet all public street standards and approved IDP is required prior to final 
plat approval. Cul-de-sac length violates the Subdivision & Development 
Regulations and requires approval of the modification included with this 
preliminary plat to be accepted. 

3. Sewer: Proposed sanitary sewer extensions will require approval of an IDP. 
IDP approval is required prior to approval of the final plat. Easements and 
dedications, existing and proposed, must be clearly dimensioned and 
labeled on the face of the plat. 

4. Water: Proposed water main extensions will require approval of an IDP. 
IDP approval is required prior to approval of the final plat. Easements and 
dedications, existing and proposed, must be clearly dimensioned and 
labeled on the face of the plat. 

5. Engineering Graphics: Submit a subdivision control data sheet with final 
plat. Remove contours from final plat. Provide addresses for individual lots. 
Label the property being platted as "site" or "project location" in the location 
map. Show only filed plats in the location map and label all other property as 
unplatted. Under the "Basis of Bearing" heading provide a bearing angle 
between two known points associated with this plat. Graphically show all 
pins found or set associated with this plat. Graphically label the Point of 
Beginning and Point of Commencement. 

6. Fire: Dead-end street requires approval of the Fire Chief. Dead-end street 
length with no secondary access will limit allowable height & square footage 
of any buildings constructed on the proposed lots. All requirements of the 
Fire Marshal must be met prior to the approval of the final plat. Additional 
language will be required in the covenants 

7.2-



6. Stormwater, Drainage, & Floodplain: All delineated floodplain boundaries, 
including City of Tulsa Regulatory Floodplain, must be clearly and accurately 
shown on the plat with base flood elevations labeled. It is recommended that 
the current effective map panels with map effective dates also be placed on 
the plat. Any proposed development within the floodplain must meet the 
floodplain development requirements of the City of Tulsa Revised 
Ordinances, Title 11-A and Title 51 as well as all City drainage standards. 
Proposed changes to the floodplain boundaries or flood elevations will be 
subject to floodplain map revisions. Stormwater improvements are required 
to obtain IDP approval prior to final plat approval. 

7. Utilities: Telephone, Electric, Gas, Cable, Pipeline, Others: All utilities 
indicated to serve the site must provide a release prior to final plat approval. 
Provide a Certificate of Records Search from the Oklahoma Corporation 
Commission to verify no oil & gas activity on the site. Public Service 
Company of Oklahoma has requested permission to install overhead electric 
within the area dedicated for the private street due to topographical 
challenges and the nature of use as an industrial park. Subdivision & 
Development Regulations only allow overhead utilities within the perimeter 
of new subdivisions. Approval of the included modification is required to 
permit overhead electric. 

Modification of Subdivision and Development Regulations: 

1. Section 5.060.5.B.2 - Permanent dead-end streets may not exceed 750 
feet in length measured from the centerline of the intersecting street to the 
center of the turnaround. 

2. Section 5-140.2 - Overhead lines for the supply of electric, telephone, 
communication, and cable television services may be located within alleys 
or perimeter easements of a subdivision. All other supply lines for electric, 
telephone, communication, cable television , natural gas, and similar 
services must be located underground in easements dedicated for general 
utility services or in street rights-of-way. 

Staff recommends APPROVAL of the modifications to the Subdivision & 
Development Regulations finding the property to be uniquely isolated with several 
challenges to external connectivity including a railroad right-of-way, existing 
buildings, and a drainage channel. Overhead utilities have been specifically 
requested by Public Services Company of Oklahoma due to the existing 
topographical challenges within the perimeter of the subdivision and the desired 
flexibility for equipment within industrial areas. 

Staff recommends APPROVAL of the preliminary subdivision plat subject to the 
conditions provided by TAC and all other requirements of the regulations. Final 
plat approval is contingent on a final release from the City of Tulsa including 
Development Services, City Legal, and City Engineering. 

(.3 



I I 

cs RS-:3 

IL 

>-
IL 

1--r-~-m----,-----,--------'-,,---..,-lB_S_LS,---.-- ---r-----rl-----.---.--

IM 

~~~~~;;ciE~::~4:~~s.t~S:r-s~~~=~~;t:;;;~::::::=:;;::..t:~~:i=::.....!.=~ 

0 
Feet 
250 

~------IF-~ 
ii:(: __ ----! ·~--U.i ,-
~ r-.··------1 .__, 
Ct>' 

~ 
1-------1:c:i:::---.---l/ 

LU 
....,._ _ _,"Ii,....' ---' 

N-,___-1 
Cl) 

500 

KAISER NORTH 
INDUSTRIAL PLANT 

19-13 23 

t!l 
JJ 
< 

,----JI a21------i 
Cl) 
:=t -..-_ _ .J___...Jlw---_. 
:=t 

I u, 



0 
Feet 
250 500 

c:m:::acilC'!", Subject 
Tract 

KAISER NORTH 
INDUSTRIAL PLANT 

19-13 23 

Note: Graphic overlays may not precisely 
align with physical features on the ground. 

Aerial Photo Date: February 2018 $ 
7.5 



Land Use Plan Categories 

- Downtown 

- Downtown Neighborhood 

- Main Street 

Mixed-Use Corridor 

- Regional Center 

- Town Center 

0 
Feet 
250 500 

- Neighborhood Center 

- Employment 

New Neighborhood 

Existing Neighborhood 

- Park and Open Space 

- Arkansas River Corridor 

KAISER NORTH 
INDUSTRIAL PLANT 

19-13 23 (.(Q 



Growth and Stability 

0 

- Area of Growth 

Area of Stability 

Feet 
250 500 

KAISER NORTH 
INDUSTRIAL PLANT 

19-13 23 f-7-$ 



Kaiser North Industrial Park 
Modification of Subdivision Regulations 

Project Information 
Kaiser North Industrial Park is being developed on an unplatted, IL-zoned tract. It is proposed to 

have 11 lots in 2 blocks with 2 reserves, one for storm water detention and one for a private street. 

It contains approximately 17.3 acres with a reserve containing approximately 0.86 acres. The lots 

vary in size, averaging approximately 1.2 acres each. 

All lots will be accessed from a private cul-de-sac connecting to South 79th East Avenue to the east. 

The street paving and curb will be 26 feet wide in a 30-foot-wide reserve. It aligns with East 401h 

Street across South 79th East Avenue to Memorial Drive. 

The proposed cul-de-sac exceeds the maximum length allowed by the Subdivision Regulations. This 

is a request to modify the maximum cul-de-sac length regulation. 

Subdivision Plat 
A preliminary plat was approved on this property in 2018-2019 with lots, blocks, reserve, and street 

in approximately the same configuration as currently shown on the accompanying plans. A 

modification to allow a cul-de-sac in approximately the same configuration was approved at that 

time with concurrence of the fire marshal (TMAPC information packet and hearing minutes 

attached). The preliminary plat approval expired before the development could start. 

A new preliminary plat titled "Kaiser North Industrial Park" is being submitted with this request. 

Support of Modification to Subdivision Regulations 
There are no opportunities to continue the street through, beyond the boundaries of this property. 

There is a continuous area of City of Tulsa Regulatory Floodway in an Overland Drainage Easement 

extending along the entire north and west boundaries of the property. Abutting the site to the south 

is an active MK&O Railroad. 

Nearly the same cul-de-sac was approved with the previously approved preliminary plat, with 

concurrence of the Fire Marshal (TMAPC information packet and hearing minutes attached). It was 

deemed then to not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare and the same conditions 

uphold that finding now. 

For the same reason, the extended length of this cul-de-sac will not be injurious to other property or 

improvements. 

The spirit, purposes, and intent of applicable zoning regulations and comprehensive plan policies will 

be impaired because the dimensions and configuration of the cul-de-sac assure that public safety is 

protected. Allowing this long-vacant property to be developed with jobs-producing business is what 

the comprehensive plan envisions. 

Wallace Engineering Structural Consultants, Inc. 
Structural and Civil Consultants 
123 North Martin Luther King Jr. Boulevard 

April 1, 2021 
Kaiser North Industrial Plant 

Modification of Subdivision Regulations 



_J 
.......0 

BASIS OF BEARINGS 
TtE BEARINGS SHO'M<I MER50N .f.AE 8ASEtl UP'ON TI-IE OKI..AHOMA STATE Pl.A/£ 
COOR~TESVSTEM, NORTH 20NE /3!0') hlO~M A'-'ERICAN DATI.M lNADe~). 
wm~THESOUTHLINEOFSECTIONU TOWNSMP18NORTI< RANGE13EA5T 
MAY!f,J(),1,~Q~S&!' l!"Sol"IN,, 

MONUMENTATION 
ALL CORNE~TO BESET WITH A JI&" IRON ;>IN WTI-I VEI.LOWCAP UNLES5 --

f .. llllOJl9't.~ijjii ... lfP,,.~,,.-..._,,,~ 
l:UE¥0C'"'~,t,Ol1C"f, f\OCO~l'1,fl~1\U,,, ~~~~=-r1:c=.~~~~ =~~,=~-.wou~~ 
NO·!_~ 
1 Tl45PLATMEETSTI-IEOl<I.AMOlilA Ml"*"1,IM~A.NDAAOSFO RTHEPRACTCE 

OF L»Cl S'-'NEYING AS AOOPTEO 8Y TtE OKI.AMOMA ST ATE BOARD OF 
REC.tSTAA1'0NFOR~lE!JGll£ERS1'NDL.ANOSURVEY01lS 

2 ~'i-:°PERTT CORtE:11'$ ARE SET 311" IRQH PIN UNl.£SS OTHER'MSE 

" :,:~~~~~,.=~~~if!: 
REUEOONINPLAcEOFTtE. LEGAl.~F"nON 

VJl.'111.~0,0l,,,Nt:l;'fl&""fjll l.11,0~r.tncc.arr(JI 
,vcs,. 

s ALLsrREETRkiHT-OF--WAVS!-tA.LLBEDS;)ICATEO.\SPUl!L.JCSTREETBY 
~~T 

~ICQMT,IY ll\l'ltli ... laoot,i·, t ....,,. ..... 
SUBOIVIS!ONCONT.t,tNS7S3,3!CSSSF(17.29AC) 
BL.OCK1 CONT.t,tNSJ1i.u.J•7SF' (7 2SAC} 
SLOCK2CONTAINS2'IASSS8SSFtt06AC) 
RESER\'E ... REAA C.OWTAIN$1\39S2ae.SI' !2.e~ AC} 
RESERVE .\READ CONT,\lNS 51 lll.:I.JGI~ 11 33 AQ 

8 cnQhmart + 

r11=~ ,1,-~· 

,m 

Preliminary Plat 

Kaiser North Industrial Park ~ 

~10/tMWilTI:R 
C€T£NTl()tl UTIUlY 

EASO,tENT&-0~ 
EASEMEMT 

Ri:.SERVE-'REA'A' 

SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF TULS A, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, 
BEING A PART OF THE S/2 OF THE SE/4 OF SECTION 23. 

TOWNSHIP 19 NORTH. RANCE 13 EAST, OF THE INDIAN BASE AND MER IDIAN. 

OvVNER: ENGINEER: SURVEYOR: 
Balick Enterprises, LLC 

7655 East 41st Street South 
Tulsa, Oklahoma, 74145 

Wallace Engineering 
Structural Consultants, INC 

Sisemore Weisz & Associates, Inc. 

123 MLK Jr Blvd. 
Tulsa , Oklahoma, 7'1103 
Phone : (918) 584-5858 

4NICOI.E-TTSPE.N021S11 
O>cCANO 14W EXPlqES6':D2021 --

611 1 E 32nd Place 
Tulsa, Okla homa 74135 
Phor.e: (918) 665-3600 

Sl-W,',INA COLLHS LS_NO 114il 
OKCANO 2<Q'I. EXPIR€S&lCll2021 

~ ......... "'Cl_<»"' 

,..---~--•--~-r---
1, l§l 

-· 
NORI>< 

'kdr- t· .. 100' 

I\ 
\ 1 

i~1 
-,~ -- ', , ;=---j!1l 

~ 

·---- ' 11 \ - J··-·-- L ,· 
.---........ . .. _ .. JI 

~D~c~onMap 

--· DIDOIIRMfNT Of•""°"&l 

~ 

Tula Metn!poltinATY• l'lanlll .. C.01111\iN .. ~ 

~n,wt lllltr ___ _ 

-
""''"°"'"' eo.m ., lh , Ch\lofTutn ~ .. ho.,. 

Apprnva1Dll1II ___ _ 

-
AtfDf Cffl'CLIH 

TI,eapp, .. alol\1'115FtrQIPlol ... ,,.p,1eone­
/ri,m~i,n:,o1c;,t,,Cou,c,llno1rhd01theOl',oe 
o,llh,CconlyCk,tk~~~ .. 

I herebvcanll\, chotal neal uc.~ ~,u r .... olvcd 1~ 
tlli<pl1th1vebeenp1ldHr11~1aedDvffltcurr"tnL 
ta>rclls !.ocurltyWlrtqulrff~•,DHnprc,,,ld,d.., 
t~tamcootcf$ PtrlfUit 
r11celprnc 1a btapplled to 
20_tut1Thls.:.r1:Wo:otellii'IOTeobe 
"""'trd upaymcnt<>f2tl_ \#JIU In full buLn 
l!l•enlncrotr1r.ltffllspkatmo1,tftledi:,n,cc'"'d 
20_<b1~mav ... ctedlhw••••:a,1taftM 
>tturitydepc,slt 

h1!<1Countyl"""-ttf 

,, 0.p,.'fY 

STATE OFOIQAltOMA I ,~ 
COUNTYDFTVlSA ) 

l,P11K..,,T>AsaC<>untyci.r1t,ln1ndf,:,,t~Countv 
1bo,em,med,dct.rebv.:.n1ty1h11111tlcrtpl"1 
1,1tna1nda>rr11ctccpyo,f1lrteln\!,Uffitnl_. 
cnnlelnmvcff.,, 

.... _____ _ 
1,41 1( • 

JWY(DllntyC,..• 

"·--------

Kaiser North Industrial Park 
!Ml'l'01] 

MlfOftR(~":t lr,t~~PPl 1 J,)tl 



~ I 
~ i l 

u ; 
i 

• ! 
• i ~~ i ~- i ~! r n tiE • l l~ ~ 

O:!.: I~ i ~: 
~-i ~~ • Ht ! I iij . 
:,:; 

!h 
1~ 'i , I 

~ 
!L... 

ro :,; a.. ~ " a c! "' ~ -~ 

ro a"> 

"'"' ~~~ 
!L... ~B~ 
~ ~~~ en ~~~ 
::::J ~~~ 

d ~~~ 
ii'. "'C '-'"'"' 

'.'l:c..i~ 
;,, 

C 
~~c.. ,_ ::, a 

t:l .... 
$ _c~-

1 ~~~ 
..c ::,<o 

'" ""-,"' ,_ 
~~: 0., t ~~~ 

0 u~~ 

~~"' z ~:~ 
:'..':;~~ 

!L... ~~~ 
~~a.. 

Q) ~ ~ en "' i;,; 

·- ~ ~ 

ro 
~ 

L~r, 
:. ~~ ~ ;! 

BW fii,1' 
~PH 
r~l~j 
rP: ~ .~ r 

~hH 
! ]iH 
i i~i LP •··t +;. ~-

r f' ! ! Id~ 

·I 
i 
a 

i 

f 
5 i ! 
t ! 
I i 
~ 
f 

I I ~ 
T 

f • I 11 

E Q 

i ~~n! 

.e 
~~ 

n 
!i; 
~~ ,, 
n ; 
!~ 

.I =a 

I! ' U2 I ., 
i~ 

' g: 
:!§" ' ~ ~ ! 

" I 
1liil . 

mm 

hi 

I 
.i 

if! . [ 
l l-h• 
Hi 
id r-.if, 1 
i! i i t' I 

Ii 

- :, _ t1 : , ~;, p V " ' a iz 
~ • Ii. I 6 • I ' 
" f. ~ j 

{ ._/ 0 



~ 
------

t~<l'~t,. 
~AlJIOW•69658 
1-.~ 

.. 

"" 

-r \ 
--~r~ 

----------r----.... ..... 

CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN 

Kaiser North Industrial Park 
SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY. STATE OF OKLAHOMA, 

BE"ING A PART OF THE S/2 OF THE SE/4 OF SECTION 23, 
TOWNSHIP 19 NORTH. RANGE 7 3 £AST, OF THE INDIAN BASE AND MERIDIAN. 

Ov\'NER· 
Bolick Enterprises, LLC 

7655 East 41st Street South 
Tulsa, Oklahoma , 74145 

,_,,_• Bol!cl 

ENG,NEER: 

Wallace Engineering 
Structural Consultants, /NC 

123 MLK Jr, Blvd 
Tulsa, Oldahoma, 74103 
Phone: (91 B) 584-5858 

A NICOUCWATTS PE NO 21511 
OK CANO 14150 EICPIRES&3000il 

..... tbC!l ... l~a,m 

SURVEYOR: 
Sisemore Weisz & Associates, Inc. 

61T1E.~Pt­
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74135 
Phone: {918) 665-3600 

Ol<C:ANO 2C21, EXP!RESlllmr.2021 

~r~ 
8'1111fllfScm'Otl'l',U;I .,... 

I,-IIU'lr.llt•O:ot 

_;f, 
I· -! 

r .. muc 

I, 
Ii .. 
I! 

IMSIJIIG8"s,i.11rJ.Rr 

/

SEwelPei'CITY'JFMs.1 

'""' 
I 

· ·r=~- I 

4 ~ s .........__ ~~----. 

\ 
NOA!H 

" Ell:lST.Mit2'S.WrARY 
" S8\fl'PEIIC11"0F n.l..M 

""' 

··-~ EAST41ST STREET SOUTH . \\.,._ ' "-.. ,:;..,,_ , _ 
IJ#m'IIV!Cft " 'I/A.l1:.IIUIC ttc10-. 

u:i 
! 

11 

I 
_J 

~ 
""""''" 

"'- EX!SnNG ITW~TERLrllE/>ER 
~O'ttu,lir.,Q 

Kaiser North Industrial Park 
~fU11C•F1 ........ IQ~·,~ 





TM 
Tulsa Metropolitan Area 
Planning Commission 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Nathan Foster 

Location Map: 
(shown with County Commission 
Districts) 

Case : Woodward Acres II 

Hearing Date: May 19, 2021 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Select Design, Ryan McCarty 

Owner. DD&R Properties LLC 

Applicant Proposal: 

Preliminary Subdivision Plat 

14 lots, 2 blocks, 20 ~ acres 

Location: North of the northwest corner of 
East 171 st Street South and South Harvard 
Avenue 

Zoning: AG-R (Agriculture - Residential) Staff Recommendation: 

EXHIBITS: Site Map, Aerial, Plat Submittal 

Staff recommends approval of the 
preliminary subdivision plat 

County Commission District: 3 

Commissioner Name: Ron Peters 



PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT 

Woodward Acres II - (County) 
North of the northwest corner of East 171 st Street South and South Harvard 
Avenue 

This plat consists of 14 lots, 2 blocks on 20 ± acres. 

The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) met on May 6, 2021 and provided the 
following comments: 

1. Zoning: Proposed lots conform to the requirements of the AG-R district. 

2. Addressing: Addresses provided by INCOG must be shown on face of the plat. 

3. Transportation & Traffic: Dimension and label right-of-way dedicated by plat 
and any adjacent right-of-way or easements. New street must be completed prior 
to final plat recording. 

4. Sewer/Water: On-site sewage disposal. Water service to be provided by Creek 
County Rural Water District #2. Water line plans must be approved by the rural 
water district and installed prior to final plat recording. 

5. Stormwater, Drainage, & Floodplain: Drainage review will be conducted by the 
Tulsa County Engineer. Any additional easements or improvements must be 
reflected on the final plat and completed prior to final plat recording . 

6. Utilities: Telephone, Electric, Gas, Cable, Pipeline, Others: Release letters 
required to be submitted from each utility serving the subdivision prior to final 
plat approval. 

Staff recommends APPROVAL of the preliminary plat subject to the conditions 
provided by TAC and the requirements of the Subdivisions Regulations. Final 
release by the Tulsa County Engineer is required prior to final plat approval. 



AG-R 

w ------> 

Al i 
I >. .___ __ ---1.----~ 

I SUBJECT TRACT 

c;( 
::c 
ch 

1...-__ ...... _ _,..... _ __.._ .,...._ --+-----~\------~ 
P0D"":a46 

RE--~ i.-.--.---...,..~r---~-4.,...---.---• --~-
AG!_R 

I 

I 
I 

, 

AG 

~;:;:;;-=~~-~-~.....i.J.._-.,.-------1 --E-1'7·1'st·s :r-s 

AG 

Feet 
O 200 400 

WOODWARD 
ACRES II 

17-13 29 

1---,----AG 

1---



0 
Feet 
200 400 D Subject 

Tract 

WOODWARD 
ACRES II 

17-13 29 

. N 
Note: Graphic overlays may not precisely _ffi_ 
align with physical features on the ground. .-w-

Aerial Photo Date: 2020 D .l\. 



WOODWARD ACRES 11 - LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE SOUTH HALF (S/2) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE/4) OF 
THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE/4) OF SECTION TWENTY-NINE (29), TOWNSHIP SEVENTEEN (17) 
NORTH, RANGE THIRTEEN (13) EAST OF THE INDIAN BASE AND MERIDIAN, TULSA COUNTY, 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA, ACCORDING TO THE U.S. GOVERNMENT SURVEY THEREOF, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE SE/4 OF SAID SECTION 29; THENCE NORTH 
01°16'24" WEST ALONG SAID EAST LINE FOR A DISTANCE OF 659.16 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 88°47'37" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 1321.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
01°16'22" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 659.56 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°48'41" EAST FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 1321.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE SE/4 OF SAID SECTION 29; 
THENCE SOUTH 01°16'24" EAST ALONG SAID EAST LINE FORA DISTANCE OF 659.16 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING. 

SAID TRACT OF LAND CONTAINS 871,014.78 SQUARE FEET OR 20.00 ACRES. 

BEARINGS ARE BASED UPON THE OKLAHOMA STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, (3501 OK 
N), NORTH AMERICAN DATUM 1983 (NAD83) USING THE EAST LINE OF THE SE/4 OF SECTION 29 
AS NORTH 01 °16'24" WEST. 



2 

I 

~g~~ 
II 13 E 

THIS SUBDIVISION IS DESIGNED 
IN ACCORDANCE VJITH 

OKLAHOMA DEPAR'TMENT OF 
ENV1RONMENTAL QUALITY 

(ODEQ) REQUIREMENTS FOR 
MINIMUM LOT SIZE FOR 

INDIVIDUAL SEPTIC SYSTEMS 
FOR EACH LOT 

Woodward Acres II 
A SUBDIVISION IN TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, BEING A PART OF THE SOUTH HALF 
(S/2) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE/-4) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE/-4) OF SECTION 
TWENTY-NINE (29), TOWNSHIP SEVENTEEN (17) NORTH, RANGE THIRTEEN (13) EAST OF THE 

lil.C.0.-,C.KTllof;lllUII[" 
19:aM.1111 
(AEJ'EATOlilOr...llilENTATIOt,iflOTE) 
ui,-,,c,,,-0.,g:1» 
M~a.t(fJ)fAl(Y(N'1 

~ ...... l(T 
U/E 1,1111,P•(.tj(.wt,.ld 

INDIAN SASE AND MERIDIAN ACCORDING TO THE US GOVERNMENT SURVEY THEREOF wn stiu:v~~, 

Unplatted .,., ... ._ ... _~ ...,.,,n_ ........ ,._,.., 
•OIJ,tOlltfl":u>ctR,;b/4-W.y£u""'""'' 
(9ooHOOIS,..,_2,9) , 

..... 
i w T ··-·:· •• - .. l 1321.00 _ - -

•:1110:, _ nia.:! _ - -

----,---, .. ;.-,,,;;;,---r ---;;"';;; .. ;;---r;:-~ ~ 1· --· ' ·- .,.= ---- ::.. .... ~·1 ~ • 
' - ' z 

l - ~ l•i ' 
--------~,'>'W'"'-

•Ii; 
ii 

w. 
6 IJJ w. 

5 
•Ott ,.,, 

II) 

!!l 
!!! 
in 
:t 

~ :x: 
::., 

~ 
~ 

Reserve ·a· 
,-.-c..­
' IIMI'"­MMIHIII' 

Olft.M, P ,m1ersF ! 

-'le• 

' ~I " 0 wnu.s, "' "- Cl'l 

' I 
==--ff=-~ a1, 

.... .- f~~ 

" ;~ 1,, .. ... ... .. 
~ I "' .. ..,..'I", 
10 : IUIP' ,,,,1.1_. IIO"M' lflfM' ll'U ~ 

Public Street 

' I I ... ,,F--· .,...--··- -- ·--=------~ .. ,,,.,;=-- -~:IF==--· -=:.:..__1·~, , 
i 8 "::::.:: ·r-::,,- : , • ,__~., ! i I 

:!J J. TU 1U W . i ! tll tlJ W 

51
: " =' 6 ~ 5 ~ 4 ~ :t 3 ; 2 ; 1 • ~ 
;- 4'it), 7 = ! uuo,gSf ! U97012Sf .UII\IISI & (2 tttft t•• ! •"9•Q06Sf E -,.UI-V. ,, r·· 
I l ........ • 'I I 
·1 1 I ,,,,......... l 

fl ~ .. ;:QCC,t~ 

L __ ---------- -- -- ··~- __ _j L________ _ _________ _J 
~q -!f tllfllt 1»j,t ,N_. , ... ~ M,t., .-t, 

. 
~ 

i~ 
E 

Owner/ Develo~ 
DCHfl ~TIU, LlC: 

'H1IIIWU, c,,wtU;l"JOII mittt 
BROKEN ,UU!OW OK 74011 

PHON( ('.!\$) 231 9!l2!1 

1M JtlllD" .. CMII 

Su~~ 
FRITZ L lNOSURVEYING LLC 

2017wEST91STSTREET 
t,A..U. Ck\J,ND~ :4.U. ... 

f'HONE (918)231 0575 

EMAIL tn1z1and sur11e~1ngGgm~~ com 
CA •ss,s EXf'IFHCS g .30.2022 

~g.!'2_~ 
DICI..OCPl(Dt,OC!Q1til.K.I.C 

PO eox 15sg1 

DELCITY, OKLAMOM.-.73155 

PHONE (405) 234 0960 lM~~~,._.,,­
C t.HW:f.....,. .. ~ 

(@ 
kn r' •CO' . . 

FlNAL F'LAT 
CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL 

,~··cc•til"lf•...._.,,......ll'L•t"".1"'~ 
BY THE TULSA METROPOLITMI AAEA PLANNING 
COMMISSION ON 

li"a , ,..,.. nn• - "-IJOCllf OFBEGl NNING 

THIS Al'flf;IOVAL ISVOI!) IF THIS Pl.AT IS NOT f 1lED N 
THE OFFICE OF THE COlJNTY CLERk ON OR BEFORE 

1 Woodward Acres 

I 

1~, 
1:IF 

Curve Table 
Subdivision Statistics +•/; >Ol<T Of'COJIM.IIICDIIJfT 

SECOIINERSEM 
SIECTIONl!IT-11-M, l'-n-E 

Line Table 

Driveway Summary Table 
DRIVEWAY 
LC>GATION 

MINIMUM PIPE SIZE DRIVEW.t.Y 
LOCATION 

MIN1 .. U .. P1PES1ZE 

SU80IVISION CONTAINS FOURTEEN (U) LOTS !N TWO (2l Bl0CKS 

ANO TMREE ()J RESERVE AREAS 

GROSS SUBDIVISION ARE,, 871 014 78 SF I ltlOO .t.CRES 

Basis of Bearing~ 

BE.t.1-'INGS ARE BASED UPON THE 01\'L.•U·IOMA STATE PLANE 

COOl-'OIN.t.TESYSTEM (3501 01( N) NORTH .t.MEFIICAN DATUM 1963 

(NA083) USING THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SE/4 OF SECTION 29 ASS 

Ml"4tin"W. 

Monumentation 
SET 3,1)' IRON PIN W, GREEN 'FRITZ C.t.~4&· CAP OR MAG N,.ll WI 

"FRITZ CA5&UJ" WASHER AT ALL CORNSCRS UNl,.ESS NOTED ANO 

SHOv.'N OTHERWISE HEREON 

Benchmar1< 
ON-SITE NGS OPUS SOLUTIONS REPORT (NAVO 19a!J 

Address 
.t.OORESS si.o'NN ONTHISPLAT ISACCUR.t.TEATTHETIMETHE 

Pl..t.T WAS FILED ADDRESS rs SUEUECT TO CHANGE AND 

Jr!OUlO tiG"i'tlt 1111: ~P-8 Otil Ml ,V.::E Cl "11,t! U4iu. 
DESCRIPTION 

!:!Q,>dplain Data 
WE HAVE E:.(AMINEO A MAP BY THE FEOEFIAL EMERGENCY 
MANAGE'-IENT AGENCY _ FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP TULSA 
COUMTY OIQ.AHOI.U UNIHCORPORA.TEO A'IEAS cor,,MUNITY 
P_.NEL NO 40\43Cll440L - OCTOSER 16, 2012 WHICH INDICATES 
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY TO BE WITH 1N UNSHADED ZONE X 
(AREAS DETERMINED TO SE OUTSIDE THEO 241. o\NNUAL CHANCE 
FLOOOP\.AIN) --­~1.,-J 

u,1.H~l"""tu •·t"-'iPJ• 

CX"> 

~ 



t 
l 
i .. .. n n •• 

l 

i 
i • • 

I 
f 
i 
' • 

i 
' I 
l 
1 

~ 
' • ! 
' T 
• 1 
! ,. 
"§ 
11 ,. 
i~ 
El 
i: 

11 
!! •• 
H •• if •• 

i 

' ~ • i 
t 
' ~ 
5 

I 
t g 
I f I • 

f 
! 
s 
j 
• i 

i 9 
[ j 
~ 
it I Ii 
E• i ;i 
· ; I 

1: i 
j -! i ,, 

;W 
,U! ti·~ ,h 
•ti• 
h!! 
~;!; na 
t~lf 
i!•! 

i:!j 
!i!• 
'•ii 1:1 r !H I ,. 9•· 

-n·, t. i. 
r·' ~§! 
~ht 

'iPi I f •• 
:1;1{ 

J ::i_,., .. 
H•lf 
;ill! i• 

!Ml u 

1; 
n 
Ii s', !I. 
I•; u!. 
~!; 

' . !" 

i ;,i 1n 
' 1h 

i as! ... 
1·= •i= ; 

i 
;,, 

! il1 ! ·• :it • • 1·• i :ef: 
f .,. hi 

ik 
ui • 
iU i • . d 

~:;': 

~~ 
f~ 

¥e 
!:¥ 

It 
~~; 

·:H 
1H 

~·i~ 
ii~ 
!,~ 

m 
~g~ 
i;~ 

Ill 
.: ~ iu 

fJ:i! 

Ill .;. 

• i"• ! • in i 

.. , !! m: •• 
j~;i n llH ! ~ U; u ti;i •• u. i;J i .. ,r g,@ 

di Hr 
'rt, sf I i,c~i 
!If i. • !ti L ii!Ii ~~ M 

!i9 t?Hi ., 
'1 n1• !1 ··1 'r •; 

i•J I !•. ~! ;!In !! •ir 
tiW ~~! .~ .. 

' ~i:1, 'i":: ... 
!i ,H 

! !:a! " ··1 !! If 

I 
,~ui "' ~i. tj1 • i! 

f • i•i 
,, ··i ·1 ' Ei i!: i ir1 Ii • rw iJi f ... , 
ii nxi • .m ! ... 

I 
t 
il 
: I 
; I 

&! .. 
!i 
!I 
~i 

.. 
~ 

" 3 
e .. 
" ~ !; 
li' 
" :; 
~ ,. 
SI 

~ 
~ 

I 
f 
~ 
?. I z 
0 
~ I 
~ 

? i L 
H p 
d 
; i 

!!iii 
~ ~ ~ ~; 

mu 

l!!ll 
;,m 
;.&•• 
~' ~ii §t!E 
~!!;1 
!UJ: 

!1111 

i 
! 
i 
7 

I 
I 

t 
; 

' 1 • I 
i 
1 
~ 

I • 
i i 
f f ' _:, • 1 
~ . 
! ! 

j• . 
1j' 

I ' ~ : 



CONCEPTUAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN 
THIS SUBDIVISION IS DESIGNED 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF 

E.HVtROHMENTAL QUALITY 
(ODEOJ R1iOUIREMEHTS FOR 

MINIMUM LOT SIZE FOR 
INDMDUAL SEPTIC SYSTEMS 

FOR EACH LOT 

Woodward Acres II 

P1P~ RAIL fc»c:E 

.=-.:=lff\.k:: ' IJJtOPOlilD CMilOITION' FACILnY 5 l I 11 ro~;::~~-~rn"°'' .,, '-v~ · ""' UJ ~ 2~UIE 

:t 
0 :::: 
0 
:t: 
::.. 
i 
~ 

' ' - •' 

t 
,,, 

2 i I ; \ \ / 
/ 

0 6/ 
7 

.. ... 

1 

<::>O 
' 
~ 

A SUBDIVISION IN TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, BEING A PART OF THE SOUTH HALF 
(S/2) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SEf4) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (5 Ef4) OF SECTION 
TWENTY-NINE (29), TOWNSHIP SEVENTEEN (17) NORTH, RANGE THIRTEEN (13) EAST OF THE 

INOIAN BASE ANO MERIDIAN ACCORDING TO THEUS GOVERNMENT SURVEY THEREOF 

' ' 

~1 4 

Un platted 

N n •'8'41• E 
1321.00' 

I 2 

---···-
~1 # 5 

--- ~- - - ~~ 
132, .ocr 

su·,,.,r-w 

Woodward Acres 

3 

4 

UA1E 

... 
l lJ 2 t 1' .. _ 

., 

~ ~ 3 •._ 2 

1 ·r I . ., 
""'"' .. , _j i \ .. "t., ..... 

\. ECll,lWQIIOHD 
lORaOAIN 

... 
.... 

"' 

~°;%~!';{ 

llt 1l .._ 

(@ 
.SCft , • • 

Owner / Deve_lQper 
DCM.R PROPERTIES LLC 

5716 WEST CHARLESTON STREET 

lll'O"ltt""OWO.:"<Jn 
PHONE (9181231 9129 
WII' .u,11,• ijeEYtllll 

~urveyor 
FRITZLANOSURVEVING LLC 

2017WEST91 ST$TREET 

'"'-14Coll,l~JOR 
PI-IONE (918) 231 0575 

EM,\IL lnlzla110Wr,ev1nM!am1II com 
CA 15a46 EXPIRES S)CJ-2027 

~ngineer 
ENGINEEF!E06Y 0ES1GN,PLLC 

PO SOX 15~67 
DEL CIT'!' OKL,\f,IOMAH155 

PHONE (~05) 23~ OS!!O 
EM.t,IL a~llt@1na1net1~~~~s19n pre 

e • • ~ttP11t£1•'0~1 

Q,o,i'f'"'f" .... lt;i-11,~1 


